
Televised Live, Government Channel WTRY  (10 WideOpenWest and 17 Comcast) Replayed Wednesdays 3:00 pm, 6:00 pm and 11:00 pm 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 
 MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

Donald Edmunds, Chair, Tom Krent, Vice Chair 
Ollie Apahidean, Karen Crusse, Carlton M. Faison, Michael W. Hutson 

Padma Kuppa, Philip Sanzica and John J. Tagle 
   

March 22, 2016 7:00 P.M. Council Board Room 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES – March 8, 2016 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 
 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
8. SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 

JPLN2016-0005) – Proposed K-9 Club, North side of Maple, West of Rochester between 
Eastport and Westwood, Section 27, Currently Zoned MR (Maple Road) District 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
9. POTENTIAL ENHANCED CLUSTER OPTION – Discussion with Planning Commission 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
ADJOURN 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City 

Clerk by e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  
An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 8, 2016 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on March 8, 2016 in the Lower Level Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: 
Ollie Apahidean 
Karen Crusse 
Donald Edmunds 
Carlton M. Faison 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Padma Kuppa 
Philip Sanzica 
John J. Tagle 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle Wortman Associates 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-03-019 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 

RESOLVED, To revise the Agenda by reversing the order of Agenda items 5 and 6. 
 

Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-03-020 
Moved by: Crusse 
Seconded by: Kuppa 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 23, 2016 Regular meeting as 
published. 
 

Yes: Apahidean, Crusse, Edmunds, Faison, Hutson, Krent, Kuppa, Sanzica 
Abstain: Tagle 
 

MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 8, 2016 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 
REVIEW (File Number SU JPLN2016-0005) – Proposed K-9 Club, North side of Maple, 
West of Rochester between Eastport and Westwood, Section 27, Currently Zoned MR (Maple 
Road) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reported on the Special Use Request and Preliminary Site Plan application for 
the proposed kennel and dog day care facility. Mr. Carlisle recommended Preliminary Site 
Plan approval provided the applicant meets conditions as identified in his report dated 
February 18, 2016. He asked the applicant to address control and mitigation of noise and 
odor. 
 
Mr. Motzny confirmed the Board can place reasonable conditions that relate to the use of 
the land when granting a Special Use. 
 
Present were the applicant John Asselin of Asselin, McLane Architectural Group and 
Robert Cassidy, prospective purchaser of the property. 
 
Mr. Asselin addressed the dumpster screening, lighting in the dog play area and the City’s 
Master Plan. 
 
Mr. Cassidy addressed: 
 Capacity of dogs; day, evening; number of indoor kennels. 
 Traffic impact; low trafficked operation. 
 Noise control; management of barking. 
 Building insulation, limited windows, environmentally controlled. 
 Dog play areas. 

o Outdoor play time would be in shifts 
o Flexible with size of outdoor play area 
o 2000 square foot indoor play area 

 Distance to residential homes. 
 Fence height, structure and material. 
 Dogs screened for temperament and socialization skills. 
 Informational meeting held; invitations sent to those residents notified by City. 
 Disposal of solid and liquid waste. 
 Staff; training, on site 24-7. 
 
Mr. Carlisle announced a letter received today from O’Donnell Properties was distributed 
to Board members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 8, 2016 
  
 
 

3 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
The following spoke in opposition and all addressed concerns with noise. 
 Tim Ostler, 1842 Eastport 
 Jim Savoie, 1853 Eastport 
 Kim Savoie, 1853 Eastport 
 Elizabeth Ackerson, 1718 Eastport; addressed safety of children and traffic. 
 Denise Carter, 1751 Eastport. 
 John Dobrin, 1675 Eastport. 
 Vinod Menon, 1687 Westwood; addressed distance to residential. 
 Patricia O’Donnell, 505-513 E Maple and 507 E. Maple; addressed number of dogs, 

distance to existing business and floodplain. 
 Jeff Melin, 1660 Eastport; addressed loss of green space, fence and traffic. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Cassidy again addressed noise concerns and how barking would be managed. He 
offered to give consideration to a different layout of the building and outdoor play area 
and to plant additional trees for buffering. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Existing dog day care facilities. 
 City’s Code on noise control; code enforcement. 
 Number of public hearing notifications sent. 
 Building orientation; site layout. 
 
Mr. Savidant said there are a number of existing dog day care facilities in the City and 
he has not done any research on the facilities as relates to the distance to residential 
homes or code enforcement action. Mr. Savidant said the proposed dog day care facility 
might be closer to residential homes than any existing dog day care facility. Further, Mr. 
Savidant said anecdotally he is not aware of any code violations at any existing facility. 
 
Mr. Carlisle said orientation of a building is priority in the Maple Road form based zoning 
district. He further noted that access to the site would be a consideration should the 
applicant propose a different building orientation. 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-03-021 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Faison 
 

RESOLVED, To re-open the floor for public comment. 
 

Yes: Apahidean, Crusse, Edmunds, Faison, Krent, Kuppa, Sanzica, Tagle 
No: Hutson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 8, 2016 
  
 
 

4 
 

Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. 
 
 John Hillert, 1867 Westwood, asked if applicant is required to meet requirements of 

newly adopted tree ordinance. 
 Jim Savoie, 1853 Eastport, addressed soliciting comments from residents near 

existing dog day care facilities. 
 Matt West, 1741 Westwood, addressed flooding of subject property driveway. 
 Patricia O’Connell, 505-513 E Maple and 507 E. Maple, addressed applicant’s 

statement of compatibility and number of dogs. 
 Vinod Menon, 1687 Westwood, addressed distance to residential homes. 
 
Chair Edmunds closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Mr. Carlisle stated the application was submitted prior to the adoption of the Woodlands 
Protection ordinance; therefore, the ordinance is not applicable to the application. Mr. 
Carlisle shared with the audience the applicant states there are no landmark or 
woodland trees and the applicant intends to preserve the protected trees along the rear 
of the property. 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-03-022 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 

RESOLVED, To postpone the item to give the applicant an opportunity to propose a 
different site plan, one that is less objectionable to the neighbors mainly because of the 
“sound” issue and to allow neighbors to do whatever research they would like to 
conduct so the Board has a more comprehensive view of the proposed development. 
 

Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP JPLN2016-0004) – Proposed 

Eddie V’s Prime Seafood Restaurant, North side of Big Beaver, West of Crooks 
between Lakeview and Alpine, Section 20, Currently Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reported on the Preliminary Site Plan application for Eddie V’s Prime Seafood 
Restaurant. He specifically addressed the relationship of the patio area to Big Beaver, 
screening of the porte cochere and the request for parking deviation. Mr. Carlisle gave 
support of the development but said there are a number of minor issues as identified in his 
report dated March 1, 2016 that should be addressed prior to granting approval. 
 
Present were Todd Taylor, Vice President of Design, Darden Restaurants, and Thomas 
Dumond, Landscape Architect, Boss Engineering. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 8, 2016 
  
 
 

5 
 

Mr. Taylor gave an introduction to Eddie V’s restaurants and circulated sample building 
materials. He addressed: 
 Building materials and elevation. 

o EFIS; durability, four colors 
o Stone accents 
o ‘Fins’ penetration 
o Character 
o Restaurant prototype 

 Porte cochere. 
o Critical to have view of water element 
o Decorate, landscape during winter months 

 Transparency calculations. 
 Masonry wall; landscaping. 
 Screening transformer. 
 Amenable to bring patio within 30 feet of Big Beaver. 
 Complimentary valet service. 
 
Members discussed: 
 Porte cochere; screening of vehicular drop-off area. 
 Congested traffic area. 
 Pedestrian access to/from parking area. 
 Stormwater management. 
 EFIS material; gap in quality from stone to EFIS. 
 Pedestrian sidewalk lighting. 
 Transparency requirements. 
 
Mr. Dumond addressed the overall landscaping and said consideration would be given to 
bioswales. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. There was no one present; the floor 
was closed for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-03-023 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 

RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a parking space deviation of 
5 spaces, bringing the total spaces provided to 131 spaces when 136 spaces are 
required by Zoning Ordinance. 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 
of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Eddie V’s Prime Seafood 
Restaurant, located on the north side of Big Beaver and west of Crooks, Section 20, 
within the BB (Big Beaver) District, be granted, subject to the following: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 8, 2016 
  
 
 

6 
 

1. Pull the patio and partial overhang over the patio to within 30 feet of Big Beaver. 
2. Provide an additional street tree along Alpine ROW. 
3. Screen transformer. 
4. Provide transparency calculation and reflect same on site plan. 
5. Consider alternative material than EFIS for primary exterior material along Alpine 

and Big Beaver. 
6. Provide detail of bollard fixtures. 
7. Provide details for additional pedestrian lighting along sidewalk on Big Beaver. 
8. Work with the Engineering Department to widen Alpine from northern most exit off 

Alpine all the way to Big Beaver. 
9. Review site for other best stormwater management practices. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
The Board deliberated whether to grant approval this evening with conditions or to ask 
the applicant to come back before the Board with a revised site plan that reflects the 
conditions. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 

Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

7. APPLICATION TO DE-LIST 3645 CROOKS 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a report on the history of 3645 Crooks and the Historic District Study 
Committee’s review of the Final Report and recommendation to de-list the property. 
 
Mr. Hutson said the final report indicates the home does not meet any of the three 
requirements for de-listing historical properties; therefore he would not vote in favor of 
de-listing the home. 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-03-024 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Krent 
 

RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby supports the de-listing of 3645 Crooks 
Road, as per the recommendation of the Historic District Study Committee. 
 

Yes: Apahidean, Crusse, Edmunds, Faison, Krent, Kuppa, Sanzica, Tagle 
No: Hutson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 8, 2016 
  
 
 

7 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 

 
There were general Planning Commission comments. 

 Positive comments on the City Retreat were shared. 
 
The Regular meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:44 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Donald Edmunds, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2016 PC Minutes\Draft\2016 03 08 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 
 



1



From: Sanzica, Philip <sanzicap@oakgov.com>
Sent: Friday, March 18, 2016 11:13 AM
To: Mc Conney, Edmond D; Brent Savidant
Cc: Kathy Czarnecki
Subject: ZBA Meeting- March 15th

Dear Don & Brent: 
I will be out of town for the next Planning Commission Meeting and wanted to report the results of the proposed 
variance on the ZBA Meeting on March 15th. 
The following item was approved by a unanimous vote: 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, RICK AND JEANINE KACZMAREK, 6714 EMERALD 
LAKE – In order to construct an addition to the house, a 6.3 foot setback variance 
from the requirement that the combined total of both side yard setbacks equal 20 
feet. 
ZONING ORDINANCE SECTION: 4.06 C, R-1D Single Family Zoning District 
 
Have a great day! 
Philip Sanzica 
 



  PC 2016.03.22 
  Agenda Item # 8 
 

 
DATE: March 17, 2016 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number 

SU JPLN2016-0005) – Proposed K-9 Club, North side of Maple, West of Rochester 
between Eastport and Westwood, Section 27, Currently Zoned MR (Maple Road) 
District 

 
The petitioner Asselin, McLane Architectural Group, LLC submitted the above referenced Special 
Use Request and Preliminary Site Plan Approval application for the K-9 Club pet daycare facility.  
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on March 8, 2016 and took the 
following action: 
 

Resolution # PC-2016-03-022 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 

RESOLVED, To postpone the item to give the applicant an opportunity to propose a 
different site plan, one that is less objectionable to the neighbors mainly because of the 
“sound” issue and to allow neighbors to do whatever research they would like to conduct 
so the Board has a more comprehensive view of the proposed development. 
 

Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
The applicant revised the site plan based on feedback from neighbors and the Planning 
Commission. 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the application.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management supports 
the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as noted. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3. Public Comment 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU JPLN 2016-0005 K-9 Club  Sec 27\K-9 Club PC Memo 03 22 2016.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
 
SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 
JPLN2016-0005) – Proposed K-9 Club, North side of Maple, West of Rochester between 
Eastport and Westwood, Section 27, Currently Zoned MR (Maple Road) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-03- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Request and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed K-9 Club, North side of Maple, West of Rochester between Eastport and 
Westwood, Section 27, Currently Zoned MR (Maple Road) District be (granted, subject to 
the following conditions): 
 
____________________________________________________________) or  
 

(denied, for the following reasons: _________________________________) or 
 

(postponed, for the following reasons:_________________________________) 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU JPLN 2016-0005 K-9 Club  Sec 27\Proposed Resolution K-9 Club 2016 03 22.doc 



K-9 Club, 551 E Maple

1: 2,300

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1920383 383Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

2/10/2016

Legend:

Aerial

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



K-9 Club, 551 E Maple

1: 2,800

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2330467 467Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

2/10/2016

Legend:

Form Based Zoning 2

(PUD) Planned Unit Development; (PUD-14) Planned Unit 
Development #14

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road

(MR) Maple Road

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Aerial

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



 
 

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
  Date:  February 18, 2016 

  March 11, 2016 
   

 

Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 

 
 
 
 
Project Name:  K‐9 Club  
 
Plan Date:  March 9, 2016 
 
Location:  551 E. Maple Road  
 
Zoning:  Maple Road, Site Type B 
 
Action Requested:  Site Plan and Conditional Use Approval 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The applicant is proposing to construct a 9,800 sq/ft kennel and doggy day care facility at 551 E. Maple 
Road.  The existing 2.05 acre parcel is vacant and adjacent to the Spencer Drain.   
 
Much of  the  triangle  shaped parcel  is  located within  the 100‐year  floodplain.   The building  is  located 
outside of the floodplain but part of the parking lot is located within the Spencer Drain easement.  The 
proposed parking lot is permitted but no permanent structures are allowed within public easements. The 
Engineering Department notes that MDEQ and/or FEMA permit may be required.   
 
The building, parking  lot, and outdoor play area  is adjacent  to office uses  to  the west and east.   The 
remaining portions of  the parcel  that  are  adjacent  to  single‐family  residential  is proposed  to  remain 
undeveloped.   Discussed in more detail in the body of this memo, the applicant has attempted to mitigate 
impacts of the noise and odor of the operation.   
   



K9 Club 
March 11, 2016 

2 

 
Daycare customers will dropoff their dogs between 6am – 8am and pick up their dogs between 4pm – 
7pm. The average number of dogs participating in daycare is expected to be 30 per day, with a maximum 
capacity of 40 per day. 
 
K9 Club will  include approximately 70 overnight dog kennels. The average number of overnight dogs  is 
estimated to be 25 or fewer.  Many of these dogs will also be the same daycare guests.  K9 Club anticipates 
that the overnight kennels will be filled to capacity only during major holidays.  At maximum capacity, the 
total estimated number of dogs on the property is estimated to be 90.  
 
The applicant has amended the site plan based on neighborhood and Planning Commission feedback.  
 

 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
 
551 E. Maple Road.  North side of Maple Road.   
 
Size of Subject Property: 
2.05 acres in area  
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
New kennel and doggy day care facility  
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned Maple Road 
 
   



K9 Club 
March 11, 2016 

3 

 
Surrounding Property Details 
 

Direction  Zoning  Use 

North  R1‐E, Single Family Residential  Single‐family 

South  IB, Integrated and Business  Light Industrial/Warehouse  

East  Maple Road; R1‐E, Single Family Residential  Office, Single‐family 
residential  

West  Maple Road; R1‐E, Single Family Residential  Office, Single‐family 
residential 

 

CHANGES SINCE LAST PLANNING COMMISSION CONSIDERATION 
 
At the March 8, 2106 meeting the Planning Commission continued the matter to allow the applicant to 
make changes to the site plan to address concerns over potential impact to adjacent properties.    
 
Since the meeting the applicant has reduced the size of the outdoor play area by 75% and moved it to 
the north side of the building.    By doing so the applicant has moved the outdoor play area further away 
from residential properties, and specifically, those along Eastport Drive.  The applicant proposes to 
enclose the outdoor play area within a fifteen (15) foot wall.  The wall has been designed to look like a 
wing of the building.  In order to relocate outdoor play area, the applicant has relocated seven (7) 
parking spaces from the side to behind the building.     
 
The applicant notes that they are going to hire an acoustical engineering company to create a predictive 
model to ensure the new dog outdoor exercise meets the Troy requirement of less than 65 decibels at the 
property  line.    The  applicant  has  included  a  revised  narrative  to  discuss  attempts  to  address  noise 
concerns.   
 
All required bulk regulations, parking requirements, landscaping requirements, and lighting requirements 
have been met.   
 

SECTION 6.13 and OPERATIONS 
 
Animal kennels and day care facilities are controlled by Section 6.13 of the Ordinance, which requires:  
 

A. Animal wastes, biohazard materials or byproducts shall be disposed of as required by the 
Oakland County Health Department, the Michigan Department of Public Health, or other duly 
appointed authority. All other wastes shall be contained in leak‐proof and odor proof 
containers. No animal wastes, biohazard materials or byproducts shall be buried or 
incinerated on‐site, or allowed to enter to groundwater. 
 
The applicant notes that solid waste will be collected and disposed in outdoor dumpsters.  The 
dumpsters will be will be emptied as needed to manage offensive odors. It is anticipated that 
outdoor dumpsters will be emptied twice per week but may be more often as necessary during 
hotter summer months. 
 



K9 Club 
March 11, 2016 

4 

The applicant also notes that liquid dog waste will not be allowed to enter the groundwater. K9 
Club’s indoor play areas will each have a raised K9 grass dog waste relief area, sprayed with a 
natural and safe attractant to encourage use. Indoor dog waste relief areas will be connected to 
the sanitary sewer. 
 

B. Buildings where animals are kept, dog runs, and exercise areas shall not be located nearer 
than one hundred (100) feet to any adjacent occupied dwelling. 
 
The dog kennel building is over 100 feet from any adjacent occupied dwelling.  This requirement 
is met.   
 

C. Dog runs and exercise areas shall not be located in any front yard and shall be screened with 
an opaque fence or wall at least six (6) feet in height. 
 
The outdoor play area is located adjacent to the building and enclosed within a fifteen (15) foot 
wall.  This requirement is met.   

 
D. All principal use activities, other than outdoor dog runs or exercise areas, shall be conducted 

within a totally enclosed building. 
 
Other than the outdoor play area, all activities are conducted within the enclosed building.  This 
requirement is met.   

 
E. All operations and the housing of animals are contained in one (1) or more completely 

enclosed buildings. 
 

Other than the outdoor play area, all activities are conducted within the enclosed building.  This 
requirement is met.   

 
The applicant has provided a narrative that describes in more details the site operations.  
 
 

SPECIAL USE 
 
Standards of Approval 
 
Section 9.03 states that before approving any requests for Special Use Approval, the Planning Commission 
shall consider: 
 
1. Compatibility with Adjacent Uses. The Special Use shall be designed and constructed  in a manner 

harmonious with  the  character  of  adjacent  property  and  the  surrounding  area.  In  determining 
whether  a  Special  Use will  be  harmonious  and  not  create  a  significant  detrimental  impact,  as 
compared to the impacts of permitted uses.  

 
The use of the site for commercial uses is consistent with commercial uses on Maple Road.  The applicant 
has designed the site and proposed use operations that will mitigate impacts upon adjacent properties, 
as compared to the impacts of a permitted use.  
 



K9 Club 
March 11, 2016 

5 

2. Compatibility with the Master Plan. The proposed Special Use shall be compatible and in accordance 
with  the goals and objectives of  the  City of  Troy Master Plan and any associated  sub‐area and 
corridor plans.  

 
The Master Plan designates the subject site and the surrounding area as the Maple Road special area.  The 
Maple Road Special Area Plan encourages entrepreneurism and infill development, including alternative 
land uses, between  the development nodes at major mile  intersections.     Furthermore a  tenet of  the 
Master Plan  is  the preservation of  residential neighborhoods.   Through  site  layout and proposed use 
operations, the applicant will mitigate impacts upon adjacent properties.   
 
3.  Traffic  Impact.  The  proposed  Special Use  shall  be  located  and  designed  in  a manner which will 

minimize the impact of traffic, taking into consideration: pedestrian access and safety; vehicle trip 
generation (i.e. volumes); types of traffic, access location, and design, circulation and parking design; 
street and bridge capacity and, traffic operations at nearby intersections and access points. Efforts 
shall be made to ensure that multiple transportation modes are safely and effectively accommodated 
in an effort to provide alternate modes of access and alleviate vehicular traffic congestion.  

 
A dog kennel and doggy day‐care operation will not generate additional traffic than would normally be 
expected for a permitted use.   
 
4. Impact on Public Services. The proposed Special Use shall be adequately served by essential public 

facilities and  services,  such as:  streets, pedestrian or bicycle  facilities, police and  fire protection, 
drainage systems, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities, and schools. Such services shall be 
provided and accommodated without an unreasonable public burden.  

 
There should not be any additional impact on other public services, such as police or utilities, beyond what 
would normally be experienced for like uses.  
 
5.  Compliance  with  Zoning  Ordinance  Standards.  The  proposed  Special  Use  shall  be  designed, 

constructed, operated and maintained  to meet  the stated  intent of  the zoning districts and shall 
comply with all applicable ordinance standards. 

 
The site complies with all zoning ordinance standards.   
 
6.   Impact on the Overall Environment. The proposed Special Use shall not unreasonably  impact the 

quality of natural features and the environment in comparison to the impacts associated with typical 
permitted uses. 

 
The applicant has designed the site to not  impact onsite and adjacent natural resources.   The building 
footprint is approximately 8% of the overall parcel size.  The portions of the parcel that are adjacent to 
single‐family  residential  is proposed  to  remain undeveloped.   That area will remain ungraded and  the 
existing vegetation will remain.   
 
7.  Special Use Approval Specific Requirements. The general standards and requirements of this Section 

are basic  to all uses authorized by Special Use Approval. The  specific and detailed  requirements 
relating to particular uses and area requirements must be also satisfied for those uses. 

   



K9 Club 
March 11, 2016 

6 

 
The applicant has met all Special Use Specific Requirements.   
 
Items to be addressed: None.  
 
 

DESIGN STANDARDS 
 
Developments within the Maple Road form‐based district must comply with Design Standards outlined in 
section 5.05.   
 
Building Orientation and Entrance 
 

a. Primary Entrance:   The primary building entrance shall be clearly  identifiable and useable and 
located  in the front façade parallel to the street.   The primary entrance  is  located  in the front 
façade facing Maple Road.    
 

b. Recessed Doorways.  Where the building entrance is located on or within five (5) feet of a lot line, 
doorways shall be recessed into the face of the building.  Not applicable  
 

c. Residential Dwellings.   Entrances for all residential dwellings shall be clearly defined by at  least 
one (1) of the following: 

I. Projecting or recessed entrance.  A recessed entrance is required if the building entrance 
is located on or within five (5) feet of the lot line. 

II. Stoop or enclosed or covered porch. 
III. Transom and/or side light window panels framing the door opening. 
IV. Architectural trim or unique color treatments framing the door opening 

 
  Not Applicable  
 
Ground Story Activation 
 

a. The  first  floor of any  front  façade  facing a right‐of‐way shall be no  less  than  fifty  (50) percent 
windows and doors, and the minimum transparency for facades facing a side street, side yard, or 
parking  area  shall  be  no  less  than  30  percent  of  the  façade.    Transparency  alternatives  are 
permitted up to 80% of the 50% total along the front of buildings, and up to 100% of the sides of 
buildings.  The minimum transparency requirement shall apply to all sides of a building that abut 
an open space, including a side yard, or public right‐of‐way.  Transparency requirements shall not 
apply to sides which abut an alley. 

 
Through the use of both windows and architectural features, the applicant meets the 
transparency requirement.   
 

Transitional Features 
 

a. Transitional features are architectural elements, site features, or alterations to building massing 
that are used to provide a transition between higher intensity uses and low‐ or moderate‐density 
residential  areas.    These  features  assist  in mitigating  potential  conflicts  between  those  uses.  



K9 Club 
March 11, 2016 

7 

Transitional  features  are  intended  to  be  used  in  combination with  landscape  buffers  or  large 
setbacks. 

 
The building, parking lot, and outdoor play area are adjacent to office uses. The portion of the 
site that is adjacent to residential is to remain undeveloped and with existing vegetation.   

 
Site Access and Parking 
 

a. Required Parking.  Off‐street parking shall be provided in accordance with the standards set forth 
in Article 13, Site Design Standards.    
 
The applicant meets the parking requirements.   
  

b. Location. 
I. When parking is located in a side yard (behind the front building  line) but fronts on the 

required building line, no more than fifty (50) percent of the  total site’s linear feet along 
the required building line or one hundred (100) feet, whichever is less, shall be occupied 
by parking.    
 
Not Applicable  
 

II. For a corner lot, shall be no more than fifty (50) percent of the site’s cumulative linear feet 
along the required building  lines or one hundred    (100) feet, whichever  is  less, shall be 
occupied by parking.  The building shall be located in the corner of the lot adjacent to the 
intersection.  
 
Not Applicable  

 
III. For a double frontage lot or a lot that has frontage on three (3) streets, the  cumulative 

total of all frontages occupied by parking shall be no more  than sixty‐five (65) percent of 
the total site’s linear feet along a required  building line or one hundred and twenty‐five 
(125) feet, whichever is less.  
 
Not Applicable  

 
IV. Where off‐street parking is visible from a street, it should be screened in accordance with 

the standards set forth in Section 13.02.C.   
 
The applicant has screened their parking lot in compliance with section 13.0.2.C. 

   
Items to be Addressed:  None   
   



K9 Club 
March 11, 2016 

8 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
We support the development and find it will be an attractive use and major investment on Maple Road.    
The applicant is providing a unique building and attractive streetscape and has revised their application 
to address the concerns raised by the neighbors and Planning Commission.  We recommend preliminary 
site plan and special use approval. 

 

     
 
 



March 17, 2016

Planning Department
City of Troy
500 W Big Beaver
Troy, MI 48084

re: Special use request (reconsideration March 22 2016)
Pet daycare establishment
551 E Maple Rd
Parcel #88-20-27-402-009

To all members of the City of Troy Planning Commission:

I am writing to ask the commission to deny the special use request of this applicant.  I live on Eastport Dr. approximately 
800 feet from the applicant's property.  Many of my neighbors and I attended the March 8th 2016 meeting in which this 
request was first considered.  After many residents expressed their concerns about the noise from barking dogs that would 
accompany this type of business, the commission voted to postpone a decision in order for the applicant to respond to 
concerns brought up in this session.

My neighbors and I are concerned about how this business located at the end of our street will negatively effect the 
tranquility of our properties.   Residents who have dogs are concerned about how this could affect their own pets. Common 
sense predicts that dozens of dogs in a close area would result in perpetual barking by multiple dogs.  This barking would 
likely start a chain reaction of other area dogs until we are in the midst of a large city block full of constantly barking dogs.

Unique to this property is that it is bordered on the west of Spencer Drain.  The banks of the drain are covered by tall, thick, 
mature trees.  This tree line is going to cause noise from this applicant's business to be funneled up the street.  Our concern 
is not necessarily an occasional barking dog or two, but a constant drone of barking dogs on a daily basis.

Troy city code (section 12.6.h page 263) expressly limits noise level at the boundary property line to 65 decibels.  An 
average conversation between two people metered at 3 feet is 65 decibels.  I tested a neighbor's two barking dogs at his 
fence line when the two dogs were 40 feet away at 85 decibels.  Anyone who has ever been exposed to barking dogs knows 
that the level is aways going to exceed that of a normal conversation.

We are aware that there are other kennels located in the city, but from our investigation they are not located this close to 
residential properties.  We understand and respect the applicant's desire to form a new business.  We also understand the 
City's desire to grow its tax base with new business.  However, we don't want to be harmed in the process.  This parcel is 
subject to special use classification.  The planning commission has the authority to say yes or no.  I ask that each and every 
member say NO.  

Thank you for your time considering my concern.

Timothy W. Ostler
1842 Eastport Dr.
Troy, MI 48083
(twostler@me.com)















1



From: Yan Rong <yrong48084@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, March 17, 2016 9:56 PM
To: Planning
Subject: Maple Road Special Project - K-9 Club.

Dear Mr. Savidant, Planning Director: 
 
As a long time residence of Troy, I strongly oppose this special project - K-9 Club.  

 

This project is not good for this neighborhood due to the possible decline in property value, the increase in 

safety problems, the decrease in quality of life in the area, and damaging image of the city. It will bring 

more noise, more safety concerns. Many school kids are using the school bus along Maple Road.  

 

Thank you very much. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Yan Rong 

 

Residence: 1735 Eastport Dr., Troy, MI 48083 
Cell: 248-835-6094 



Scale

Project number

Date

Checked by

REV FOR SLU & SPR 3.9.16

CVR

COVER SHEET

15110

K9 CLUB

3/8/2016

Checker

551 E. MAPLE RD.
TROY, MI 48083

PROPOSED NEW URBAN PET
CENTER FOR:

Sheet List

Sheet Number Sheet Name

CVR COVER SHEET

1 OF 1 BOUNDRY AND TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

C101 SDMO

C102 SITE PLAN

C103 GRADING PLAN

C104 DETAILS

L101 LANDSCAPE PLAN

LP101 LIGHTING PLAN

A101 FLOOR PLANS

A102 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

SITE PLAN REVIEW

NORTH

LOCATION MAP
NOT TO SCALE

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
LOT 73 OF "SUPERVISOR'S PLAT OF BEECH GROVE HEIGHTS SUB. NO.1"
PART OF THE SE 1/4, SECTION 27, T.2N., R.11E., TROY TOWNSHIP, (NOW
CITY OF TROY) OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN.  AS RECORDED IN LIBER
44 OF PLATS, PAGE 47, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS.

No. Description Date





SITE  DEMO / TREE PRESERVATION PLAN

SCALE : 1" = 30'-0"

NORTH

Know what's

R

C101

SITE DEMO/ TREE

PRESERVATION

PLAN

15110

JLA

No. Description Date

1

Scale

Project number

Date

Checked by

K
9
 
C

L
U

B

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
 
N

E
W

 
 
U

R
B

A
N

 
 
P

E
T

 
 
C

E
N

T
E

R

F
O

R
:

5
5
1
 
E

.
 
M

A
P

L
E

 
R

D
.

T
R

O
Y

,
 
M

I
 
4
8
0
8
3

AS NOTED

SPR AND SLU SUBMITTAL 02-08-16

DEMOLITION NOTES

2 REV FOR SPR AND SLU 03-09-16



SITE   PLAN

SCALE : 1" = 30'-0"

NORTH

Know what's

R

GENERAL NOTES

C102

SITE PLAN

15110

JLA

No. Description Date

1

Scale

Project number

Date

Checked by

K
9
 
C

L
U

B

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
 
N

E
W

 
 
U

R
B

A
N

 
 
P

E
T

 
 
C

E
N

T
E

R

F
O

R
:

5
5
1
 
E

.
 
M

A
P

L
E

 
R

D
.

T
R

O
Y

,
 
M

I
 
4
8
0
8
3

AS NOTED

SPR AND SLU SUBMITTAL 02-08-16

SITE BUFFER PLAN

SCALE : 1" = 100'-0"

NORTH

ENLARGED SITE PLAN

SCALE : 1" = 10'-0"

NORTH

2 REV FOR SPR AND SLU 03-09-16



SCALE : 1" = 30'-0"

NORTH

C103

GRADING

PLAN

15110

JLA

No. Description Date

1

Scale

Project number

Date

Checked by

K
9
 
C

L
U

B

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
 
N

E
W

 
 
U

R
B

A
N

 
 
P

E
T

 
 
C

E
N

T
E

R

F
O

R
:

5
5
1
 
E

.
 
M

A
P

L
E

 
R

D
.

T
R

O
Y

,
 
M

I
 
4
8
0
8
3

AS NOTED

SPR AND SLU SUBMITTAL 02-08-16

GRADING  PLAN

SCALE : 1" = 30'-0"

NORTH

Know what's

R

NORTH

ENLARGED GRADING PLAN

SCALE : 1" = 10'-0"

NORTH

2 REV FOR SPR AND SLU 03-09-16



CEDAR OR WOOD

COMPOSITE GATE

6" THICK P.C.C.

SLAB W/ 6" X 6" -

10/10 W.W.M. ON

6" GRAVEL BASE

45° @

CONCRETE

EDGES

6" DIA. PIPE, 8' LONG

FILLED W/ CONCRETE. TOP

OF PIPE; 4' ABOVE SLAB,

REQ'D FOOTING: 2'-0" DIA.

X 4'-0" DEEP. (TYP.)

1/4"

SLOPE

PER FT

16" O.C.

8" THICK POUR-IN

PLACE SLAB W/ 6"x6" -

10/10 W.W.M. ON 6"

AGG. BASE

SLOPE 1/4"

PER FT

(1) #5 CONT., GROUT

SOLID 8" CMU W/ #5

VERTICAL REBAR @

32" O.C.

HORIZ. REINF.

BOND BEAM

COURSE W/

CONCRETE

CAP

ROUNDED

8" SPLIT FACE TO

MATCH BUILDING

COLORS

PAVEMENT

SURFACE

AS

SPECIFIED

#5 BARS

CONT. TOP &

BOTTOM

C104

SITE DETAIL

1574

JLA

No. Description Date

Scale

Project number

Date

Checked by

DETAIL

DETAIL

DETAIL

DETAIL

STRIPING DETAIL

DUMPSTER SCREEN DETAIL

DUMPSTER SECTION

1 02-08-16SITE PLAN REVIEW

K
9
 
C

L
U

B

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
 
N

E
W

 
 
U

R
B

A
N

 
 
P

E
T

 
 
C

E
N

T
E

R

F
O

R
:

5
5
1
 
E

.
 
M

A
P

L
E

 
R

D
.

T
R

O
Y

,
 
M

I
 
4
8
0
8
3

2 REV FOR SPR AND SLU 03-09-16



SITE   PLAN

SCALE : 1" = 30'-0"

NORTH

L101

LANDSCAPE

PLAN

15110

JLA

No. Description Date

1

Scale

Project number

Date

Checked by

K
9
 
C

L
U

B

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
 
N

E
W

 
 
U

R
B

A
N

 
 
P

E
T

 
 
C

E
N

T
E

R

F
O

R
:

5
5
1
 
E

.
 
M

A
P

L
E

 
R

D
.

T
R

O
Y

,
 
M

I
 
4
8
0
8
3

AS NOTED

SPR AND SLU SUBMITTAL 02-08-16

Know what's

R

DETAIL

DETAIL
DETAIL

2 REV FOR SPR AND SLU 03-09-16



PHOTOMETRIC   PLAN

SCALE : 1" = 30'-0"

NORTH

LP101

PHOTOMETRIC

PLAN

15110

JLA

No. Description Date

1

Scale

Project number

Date

Checked by

K
9
 
C

L
U

B

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
 
N

E
W

 
 
U

R
B

A
N

 
 
P

E
T

 
 
C

E
N

T
E

R

F
O

R
:

5
5
1
 
E

.
 
M

A
P

L
E

 
R

D
.

T
R

O
Y

,
 
M

I
 
4
8
0
8
3

AS NOTED

SPR AND SLU SUBMITTAL 02-08-16

2 PLAY AREA LIGHTING 02-24-16

PARKING LOT LIGHT

3 REV FOR SPR AND SLU 03-09-16



UP

UP

PLAY 2
111

95' - 0"

6' - 0"

101' - 0"

92
' -

 0
"

67
' -

 0
"

25
' -

 0
"

WASH
117

-
---

35
' -

 3
"

KITCHEN
118

GROOM
128

PLAY 1
129

5' - 0" 9'
 - 

0"

5' - 0"

28' - 7"

15
' -

 5
"

5' - 5"

12' - 0"

12
' -

 0
"

12
' -

 0
"

21' - 5"

29
' -

 2
 1

/4
"

29
' -

 2
 1

/4
"

29
' -

 1
0"

38' - 0"

5'
 - 

0"

5'
 - 

0"

5' - 0" 5' - 0"

5'
 - 

0"

4'
 - 

2 
1/

4"

11 22

10

30' - 6"30' - 1"

26
' -

 5
"

35' - 0" 31' - 4 1/2" 25' - 9 1/2"

24
' -

 0
"

STAIR 2
201

77' - 4"

2'
 - 

5"
37

' -
 3

"
2'

 - 
5"

17' - 4" 5' - 0" 14' - 5" 5' - 0" 14' - 7" 5' - 0" 16' - 0"

14' - 5" 19' - 7"

42
' -

 1
"

ROOF BELOW

ROOF BELOW

15' - 0"

35
' -

 3
"

12
' -

 3
"MECH.

203

KENNELS
207

CAT CONDOS
206

-
---

33' - 0"

33' - 0"

24

Scale

Project number

Date

Checked by

OWNER REVIEW 02.12.161
REV FOR SLU & SPR 03-08-162

 1/8" = 1'-0"

55
1 

E.
 M

AP
LE

 R
D

.
TR

O
Y,

 M
I 4

80
83

A101

CONCEPTUAL
DESIGN

Project Number

K9
 C

LU
B

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 N

EW
 U

R
BA

N
PE

T 
C

EN
TE

R
 F

O
R

:

Issue Date

Checker
 1/8" = 1'-0"1 FIRST FLOOR PLAN

 1/8" = 1'-0"2 SECOND FLOOR PLAN

CANINE RELIEF
AREA

CANINE RELIEF
AREA

No. Description Date



"K 9 CLUB" SIGN TO MEET
ORDINANCE

REQUIRMENTS

CEDAR SIDING DORMER BEYOND

METAL COPING

CEDAR AWNING AT
WINDOWS WHERE SHOWN

FACE BRICK

METAL PANEL TO MATCH
ROOFING

1" INSULATED GLAZING
WITH ALUMINUM FRAME

(TYPICAL)

B
U

IL
D

IN
 H

E
IG

H
T

2
9

' -
 4

"

2
4

' -
 0

"

1
5

' -
 0

"

OUTDOOR PLAY AREA
BEHIND 15' WALL

DORMER

METAL COPING

CEDAR AWNING AT
WINDOWS WHERE SHOWN

FACE BRICK

1" INSULATED GLAZING
WITH ALUMINUM FRAME
(TYPICAL)

B
U

IL
D

IN
 H

E
IG

H
T

2
9

' -
 4

"

1
5

' -
 0

"

METAL ROOFING

CEDAR AWNING AT
WINDOWS WHERE SHOWN

METAL SIDING

1
5

' -
 0

"

2
4

' -
 0

"

B
U

IL
D

IN
 H

E
IG

H
T

2
9

' -
 4

"

DORMER BEYOND

METAL COPING

FACE BRICK

ROOF FOR WAETHER
PROTECTION @ DOORS

CEDAR SIDING

OUTDOOR PLAY AREA
BEHIND 15' WALL

1
5

' -
 0

"

B
U

IL
D

IN
 H

E
IG

H
T

2
9

' -
 4

"

DORMER WITH CEDAR
SIDING

METAL COPING

FACE BRICK

1" INSULATED GLAZING
WITH ALUMINUM FRAME

(TYPICAL)

METAL ROOFING

CEDAR AWNING AT
WINDOWS WHERE SHOWN

OUTDOOR PLAY AREA
BEHIND 15' WALL

METAL ROOFING

METAL SIDING
METAL SIDING

Scale

Project number

Date

Checked by

REV. FOR SLU & SPR 3.9.16

 1/8" = 1'-0"

A102

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

15110

K
9
 C

L
U

B

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 N
E

W
 U

R
B

A
N

P
E

T
 C

E
N

T
E

R
 F

O
R

:

3/8/2016

JLA

5
5
1
 E

. 
M

A
P

L
E

 R
D

.
T

R
O

Y
, 
M

I 
4
8
0
8
3

 1/8" = 1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

WEST ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

NORTH ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

EAST ELEVATION

No. Description Date



Managing Noise 
To comply with Troy’s noise ordinance, K9 Club will follow these guidelines. 

 No adjacent occupied dwelling will be within 100 feet of any building, dog run or exercise area. 

 The dog exercise area will not be located within the front yard and will be screened with an opaque, 
solid fence 6 feet high. 

 All principle uses other than dog runs and exercise areas will be in a totally enclosed building.  

 All operations and housing of animals will be contained in a completely enclosed building. 

 The outdoor exercise area will not be used outside of the hours of 7am – 8pm per the City of Troy’s 
noise ordinance. And in fact, K9 Club’s outdoor exercise schedule will be limited to between the hours 
of 8am –6pm. Dogs that are only participating in daycare will be ready for pickup by 4pm so no daycare 
dogs should be in the outdoor play area after that time.  

 Outdoor exercise areas will include many features that will occupy the dog’s attention, thereby 
reducing noise. The list includes: (a) separate exercise areas to reduce the number of dogs in one area, 
(b) lots of trees, boulders, landscaping, (c) exercise and climbing structures, (d) toys. 

 
Additionally, the outdoor exercise area will be supervised by one or more employees when dogs are occupying 
this area. Excessively noisy dogs will be brought back inside to exercise. K9 Club’s design includes nearly 2,000 
square feet of indoor exercise area, which is the primary area for exercise/play.  
 
Special note 
After carefully listening to the valuable comments from both local Troy homeowners and Planning 
Commission board members, K9 Club has made the following changes to its outdoor dog exercise area.  
 

 The outdoor exercise area has been reduced in size by over 75%, going from over 9,000 sq. ft. to 2,232 
sq. ft. in size.  

 The outdoor exercise area has been relocated from the rear of K9 Club’s building to the east side of the 
building. By making this relocation, it has (a) moved the outdoor exercise area an additional 105’ 
farther away from Eastport Drive homes, and (b) placed K9 Club’s building between the outdoor play 
area and Eastport Drive homes.  

 The outdoor exercise area is no longer surrounded by a 6’ high opaque plastic fence, but instead is 
surrounded by a 15’ high opaque, solid masonry brick wall. The outdoor exercise wall dimensions are 
as follows: 

o West wall: 23’ high, 95’ long (side of K9 Club building) 
o North wall: 15’ high, 24’ long 
o East wall: 15’ high, 95’ long 
o South wall: 15’ high, 24’ long 

 
The relocaction of the outdoor exercise area, along with size and wall modifications, will reduce K9 Club noise 
levels at the property lines to within the Troy zoning ordinance requirements.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  PC 2016.03.22 
  Agenda Item # 9 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
DATE: March 18, 2016 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: POTENTIAL ENHANCED CLUSTER OPTION – Discussion with Planning 

Commission 
 
 
This item was initiated by the Planning Commission. It will complement the recently 
approved Woodland Protection provisions, based on a recognition that the Zoning 
Ordinance is presently silent on the issue of oil and gas extraction.  
 
The attached report summarizes the issue and serves as a starting point for discussion. 
This discussion will provide direction for the enhanced Cluster Option provisions.  
 
Please be prepared to discuss this item at the March 22, 2016 Planning Commission 
meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Memo from CWA. 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 249 Enhanced Cluster Option\PC Memo 03 22 2016.doc 



  PC 2016.03.22 
  Agenda Item # 9 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
DATE: March 18, 2016 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: POTENTIAL ENHANCED CLUSTER OPTION – Discussion with Planning 

Commission 
 
 
This item was initiated by the Planning Commission. It will complement the recently 
approved Woodland Protection provisions. It is intended that the existing cluster provisions 
be strengthened by further incentivizing cluster development. 
 
The attached report summarizes the issue and serves as a starting point for discussion. 
This discussion will provide direction for the enhanced Cluster Option provisions.  
 
Please be prepared to discuss this item at the March 22, 2016 Planning Commission 
meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Memo from CWA. 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 249 Enhanced Cluster Option\PC Memo 03 22 2016.doc 



 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:    Planning Commission, City of Troy 
 
FROM:  Richard K. Carlisle, AICP 
  Benjamin R. Carlisle, AICP 

DATE:  March 8, 2016 
 
RE:  Enhanced Cluster Development Ordinance 
 

 
We  have  been  requested  to  provide  the  Planning  Commission  with  information  regarding  cluster 
development. Included  in this discussion  is the background and basis for cluster development, existing 
regulations, alternative approaches and examples from other communities, and discussion considerations  
for the Planning Commission in amending the cluster development ordinance. 
 
Background and Basis 
 
As the Planning Commission is aware, the City recently adopted a Woodland Protection Ordinance.  As 
part of the Woodland Ordinance adoption the City Council directed the Planning Commission to review 
and revise the existing Cluster Development Ordinance in order to better facilitate implementation of the 
Woodland Ordinance and provide for a viable more alternative development option.   
 
The  intent  is  to both  incentivize  cluster development but also  through design  innovation, permit  the 
applicant and  the Planning Commission greater  flexibility  to provide a more creative approach  to  the 
development of single‐family residential areas, and encourage a more efficient, aesthetic, and desirable 
use of the land.   Incumbent upon this is also the need to protect the existing neighborhood patterns that 
exist throughout the City.   
 
Existing Ordinance  
 
The City has an existing Cluster Development Ordinance.   Since  the Ordinance was adopted, only one 
development has taken advantage of that development option.  In conversations with the development 
community, they have noted that the benefit of doing a cluster is not offset by the restrictions.    
 
Benefits of cluster development in current ordinance:  

 Twenty‐foot front yard, 25‐foot rear yard, and 7.5‐foot side yard setbacks 

 Twenty‐percent density bonus if 50% open space is provided 

 A reduction in utilities due to reduced lengths of streets 

 The use of a private  road  is permitted.    In conventional developments, private  roads are only 
permitted if the site is less than 5 acres.  



Troy Cluster 
March 8, 2016 

 

2 

 

 
The development community has specifically noted a few regulations of the existing ordinance that limit 
cluster development.  These regulations include:  

 A minimum of 25% of the site must be preserved as permanent open space 

 The required rear yard setback has to be met along all adjacent boundaries 

 Density bonus is very restrictive, 50% open space is very hard to achieve, and does not offset the 
loss in private yards that many home owners desire.  

 In  addition  to  50%  open  space,  a  density  bonus  is  only  awarded  if  the  applicant  provides  a 
Sustainable Design  Project,  perimeter  “open  space”  cluster  of  150‐feet,  donation  of  land  for 
community benefit, or similar element as determined by City Council.     

 
Alternative Approaches 
 
Regulatory approaches can vary  in  terms of  scope and approach.   We  reviewed a number of existing 
cluster ordinances for communities both within and outside of Michigan.  We focused on similar built‐out 
communities  such  as  Troy;  however, we  note  that many  urban  communities  do  not  have  a  cluster 
ordinance.  Most example were from Township ordinances.  In general, there are several concepts that 
are prevalent in all cluster ordinances: 

 All require a minimum amount of open space 

 All allow a reduction in required setbacks 

 All have some form of focus on environmental protection 
 
Listed below are other communities that we researched where some of the regulations may be applicable 
to Troy:  
 
Rochester Hills, MI 

 Created a separate zoning district for cluster development    

 Allows for single‐family attached in single‐family residential districts through the cluster option.  
 
Wixom, MI 

 Requires 20% open space.  30% open space is required in order to receive density bonus.   

 City Council can grant up to a 25% density bonus based on recommendation from the Planning 
Commission.    

 Permits attached units in a cluster development.  
 
Brownstown Township, MI 

 Permits a 10% density bonus if “a development provides a diverse variety of housing types or 
provides a type of housing that is desired, but not currently offered in the Township.” 

 Allows for single‐family attached in single‐family residential districts through the cluster option.  
 
Blendon Township, MI 

 Varies density bonus based on open space provided 
o 50% open space = 20% density bonus 
o 55% open space = 30% density bonus 
o 60% open space = 40% density bonus 

 
Berkeley County, SC (Charleston area)  



Troy Cluster 
March 8, 2016 

 

3 

 

 Requires 20% open space  

 For every 10% percent open space provided above 20%, a 5% bonus density may be applied, up 
to 25% density bonus 

  
Kitsap County, WA (Seattle suburb) 

 Forty‐percent minimum required  

 If forty‐percent is provided, a 20% density bonus automatically applied.   

	
Discussion Considerations: 
 
In previous discussions with the Planning Commission regarding amendments to the cluster ordinance the 
following  items were discussed.     Please note that  for each discussion point we have offered multiple 
options for the Planning Commission to consider.   
 

 Reduce required open space for both non‐density bonus and density bonus cluster developments 
 
Options for Planning Commission to consider:  
 

1. Maintain existing open spaces minimum of 25% and 50% for density bonus.   
2. Reduce  the  open  space  requirement  for  non‐density  and/or  density  bonus  cluster 

developments.  
 

 Incentivize clustering though density bonus 
 

Options for Planning Commission to consider:  
 
1. Maintain existing density bonus. 
2. Provide automatic density bonus if cluster development is provide.  I.e if someone meets all 

minimum cluster requirements (open space requirements, etc) they are automatically eligible 
for a density bonus.   

3. Allow for an increase in density commensurate with open space provided.   
 

 Incentivize, through density, development that is not currently offered in the market. 
 
Options for Planning Commission to consider:  

 
1. Provide a density bonus for smaller housing products.   What constitutes a smaller housing 

product can be discussed by the Planning Commission but generally anything less than 1,500 
to 2,000 sq/ft.   

2. Provide  a  density  bonus  for  incorporation  of  sustainable  design  (stormwater  best 
management practices, environmental protection, etc) . 
 

 Allow attached housing in single‐family zoning districts through cluster development. 
 
In some cases, allowing for attached housing may be the only way to meet the required open space 
to obtain density bonus.  Options for Planning Commission to consider:  
 



Troy Cluster 
March 8, 2016 

 

4 

 

1. Via a special use, allow for attached housing in cluster development if the site fronts and has 
access to a major mile road.  

2. Option can be limited to specific zoning districts such as R1C‐R1E zoning districts.   
 

 Permit greater design flexibility.    
 
Options for Planning Commission to consider:  
 

1. Keep current setback requirements 
2. Reduce setback requirements.  Example:  

 

Minimum Building Separation 

Minimum 
building 

separation 
from: 

Internal 
drive to 
front 
loading 
garage 

Internal 
drive to 
side 

loading 
or 

detached 
garage 

Building 
Side to 
Building 
Side 

Building Side 
to Building 
Front or 

Building Rear 

Building 
Rear to 
Building 
Rear 

Building to 
any 

adjacent 
property 
line.   

25 feet  15 feet  10 feet  20 feet  30 feet  35 feet 

 
3. Allow  the  Planning  Commission  to  grant  relief  for  said  setbacks  or  building‐to‐building 

separation.   Such flexibility can be permitted through a special use process.   
 

 Eliminate density bonus  requirement of a Sustainable Design Project, perimeter “open space” 
cluster of 150‐feet, donation of land for community benefit, or similar element as determined by 
City Council.     

 
These comments are not binding to what the adopted regulations may be but they were used to set the 
parameter of discussion  in regards to possible cluster development amendments.     Once the Planning 
Commission has had an opportunity to consider the best practices of other communities and consider the 
assumptions we will be able to provide a draft Ordinance for review.   
 
In the meantime, if there are additional questions, please do not hesitate to ask. 
 
Yours Truly, 
 

 
 
 


	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. MINUTES
	March 8, 2016

	4. PUBLIC COMMENT
	5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT
	March 15, 2016 ZBA Report from Member Sanzica  

	6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT
	7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT
	8. SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU JPLN2016-0005) 
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Map(s)
	Planning Consultant Report
	Public Comments (3)
	Site Plan 
	Applicant Narrative 

	9. POTENTIAL ENHANCED CLUSTER OPTION
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Planning Consultant Report

	10. PUBLIC COMMENT
	11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT



